
 
 

 

 
 
 
WEDNESDAY, 17 MAY 2023 
 
 
TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
I HEREBY SUMMON YOU TO ATTEND A MEETING OF THE 
PLANNING COMMITTEE WHICH WILL BE HELD IN THE CHAMBER - 
COUNTY HALL, CARMARTHEN. SA31 1JP AND REMOTELY AT 
10.00 AM ON THURSDAY, 25TH MAY, 2023 FOR THE 
TRANSACTION OF THE BUSINESS OUTLINED ON THE ATTACHED 
AGENDA 
 
 

Wendy Walters 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
 
Democratic Officer: Emma Bryer 
Telephone (direct line): 01267 224029 
E-Mail: Democraticservices@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 
The meeting can be viewed on the Authority’s website via the following 
link:- https://carmarthenshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

 
 

Wendy Walters Prif Weithredwr, Chief Executive, 
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 
 
 

Document Pack

https://carmarthenshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE – 21 MEMBERS 
 

 
 

PLAID CYMRU GROUP -  11 Members 
 

1.  Cllr. Tyssul Evans (Chair) 
2.  Cllr. Mansel Charles   
3.  Cllr. Terry Davies   
4.  Cllr. Ken Howell   
5.  Cllr. Carys Jones (Vice-Chair) 
6.  Cllr. Jean Lewis   
7.  Cllr. Denise Owen   
8.  Cllr. Dorian Phillips   
9.  Cllr. Russell Sparks   
10.  Cllr. Gareth Thomas   
11.  Cllr. Elwyn Williams   

 
LABOUR GROUP -  6 Members 
1.  Cllr. Peter Cooper   
2.  Cllr. Michelle Donoghue   
3.  Cllr. Nysia Evans   
4.  Cllr. Anthony Leyshon   
5.  Cllr. Edward Skinner   
6.  Cllr. Michael Thomas    

 
INDEPENDENT  GROUP -  3 Members INDEPENDENT GROUP - 6  Members 
1.  Cllr. Sue Allen   
2.  Vacancy 
3.  Vacancy 

 
UNAFFILIATED – 1 Member 
1.  Cllr. John Jenkins   
2.  

 

 
 



 

 
 

A G E N D A   
  

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTERESTS   
 
3. DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS  5 - 32 
 
4. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 

MEETING HELD ON THE 27TH APRIL, 2023  
33 - 34 

 
5. PLANNING SERVICE PERFORMANCE - QUARTER 4  35 - 56 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin 
Carmarthenshire County Council 

 
 
 

PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
 

Adroddiad Pennaeth Lle a  
Chynaliadwyedd 
Lle a Seilwaith 

 
Report of the Head of Place  

and Sustainability  
Place and Infrastructure 

 
 
 

25/05/2023 
 

 
 

I’W BENDERFYNU 
FOR DECISION 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In relation to those applications which are identified as one in which the Council has an 

interest either as applicant/agent or in terms of land or property ownership, Members 

are reminded that they must set aside this aspect, and confine their consideration and 

determination of such applications exclusively to the merits of the planning issues 

arising.  The Council’s land owning function, or other interests in the matter, must not 

be taken into account when determining such planning applications. 

 

 

 

  

 

Mewn perthynas â cheisiadau y mae gan y Cyngor ddiddordeb ynddynt un ai fel 

ymgeisydd/asiant neu fel perchennog tir neu eiddo, atgoffir yr Aelodau fod yna rhaid 

iddynt anwybyddu’r agwedd hon, gan ystyried ceisiadau o’r fath a phenderfynu yn eu 

cylch ar sail rhinweddau’r ceisiadau cynllunio yn unig. Ni ddylid ystyried swyddogaeth 

y Cyngor fel perchennog tir, na materion cysylltiedig, wrth benderfynu ynghylch 

ceisiadau cynllunio o’r fath. 

 

Page 6



 

 

 
COMMITTEE: 
 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
DATE: 
 

 
25/05/2023 

 
REPORT OF: 
 

 
HEAD OF PLACE AND SUSTAINABILITY 

 
 

 
REF. 

 
APPLICATIONS RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL 

 
 

PL/03849 
 

 
Variation of Condition 3 on W/35339 (erection of gates) at Cartref 
Cynnes, Peniel, Carmarthen, SA32 7HT 
 

 
 
 

 
REF. 

 
APPLICATIONS RECOMMENDED FOR REFUSAL 

 
 

PL/04739 
 

 
Erection of a rural enterprise dwelling and associated works at Treale, 
Velindre, Llandysul, SA44 5XU 
 

 
PL/05366 

 

 
Replacement of lawful caravan & decking with dwelling & integral 
garage (Re-submission following refusal of PL/04327) at The Caravan, 
Springwells Farm, Llanboidy, Whitland, SA34 0EB 
 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 7



 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
APPLICATIONS RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



 

 

 
 
Application No 
 

 
PL/03849 

 

Application Type Removal/variation of conditions 

Proposal Variation of Condition 3 on W/35339 (erection of gates) 

 
Location 
 

Cartref Cynnes, Peniel, Carmarthen, SA32 7HT 

 

Applicant(s) Wyn Thomas 

Agent Ceri Davies Planning Ltd - Mr Ceri Davies 

Officer Helen Rice 

Ward Abergwili (Historical) 

 
Date of validation 
 

28/04/2022 

 

Reason for Committee 
 
This application is being reported to the Planning Committee following the receipt of three 
or more objections from third parties.  
 

Site 
 
The application site is located to the west of the village of Peniel and relates to a recently 
built two storey dwelling situated to the rear of other residential properties which front onto 
an unclassified road known as Trefynys Road which links the villages of Peniel and 
Bronwydd. The dwelling itself is accessed from the unclassified highway by a single track 
driveway that also serves as access to a property named Bryn Hawddgar and its associated 
annexe on the western side of the road and a property known as Cwm Parc Farm and its 
associated outbuildings on the eastern side of the driveway wit. The access driveway is in 
shared ownership with a right of access to the application site itself.  
 

Proposal  
 
The proposal seeks permission to vary a condition on the planning permission for the 
dwelling to enable the erection of gates on the shared access drive. When planning 
permission was originally granted a condition was imposed that stated : 
  

Page 9



 

 

The vehicular access into the side shall at all times be left open, unimpeded by gates or any 
other barrier. 
 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety. 
  
This application seeks to vary the above condition to enable the erection of gates located 
32m back from the near edge of the unclassified highway edge adjacent to the side 
projection of Brynhawddgar’s annexe building. The gates would comprise vertical composite 
boards on a galvanized steel fence and posts with an angled design being of a height of 
1.75m near each side rising to a mid-point of 1.95m and 3.7m wide and would open inwards. 
The proposed plans indicate the provision of a pedestrian side access gate between the 
proposed gates and the corner of the annexe building’s side projection. The applicant has 
advised that the gates would be electronically controlled, open inwards, include a intercom 
system with built in keypad and could be operated remotely via wi-fi connection. Therefore 
enabling operation of the gates by the applicant even if they are not at home at the time 
should visitors/deliveries arrive.  
  
The applicant’s agent advises that the above conditions were not challenged when originally 
imposed as it was accepted, given the nature of the unclassified road, that vehicles were 
able to fully leave the unclassified highway to avoid highway safety concerns. However, 
concerns over security due to the unimpeded access into the property has increased in 
recent years with the applicant’s agent advising of instances where access has been gained 
by foot and by vehicle to the property by unknown person(s) and the need to keep his dogs 
contained within the wider application site area. It is contended that by positioning the gates 
32m back from the highway edge that vehicles would remain to be able to safely pull off the 
highway and would not impede access to other properties on the shared drive. 
  
Members are advised that during the course of the application correspondence was received 
that advised that not all of the owners of the road had been duly notified of the application 
and served with the required notices. In addition, the submitted application site plan did not 
truly reflect the original application site boundary which appeared to include a larger width 
of entrance beyond the proposed gates in comparison to the application site boundary itself. 
Members are advised that both these matters have been addressed during the course of 
the application with the requisite notices served and the application site boundary plan duly 
amended.  
 

Planning Site History 
 
W/39665 - Variation of condition 2 of W/35339 (construction of dwelling and garage) extend 
width of approved raised terrace area - Granted - 25/11/2019 
 
W/38555 - Construction of garage - Full Granted 03/05/2019 
 
W/37518 - Variation of condition 2 of W/35339 to amend height of house to enable attic 
space to be used as a snooker room for personal use – VOC Granted 15/11/2018 
 
W/35339 - Construction of dwelling and garage - Full Granted 24/05/2017 Affordable 
Housing Contribution (no S106) 
 
W/17138 - 1 dwelling house & garage - Reserved Matters Granted - Delegated 24/10/2007 
 
W/11224 - Residential development 1 plot - Outline Granted - Delegated 30/01/2006 

Page 10



 

 

 

Planning Policy 
 
Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan (Adopted December 2014) (‘the LDP’) 
SP1   Sustainable Places and Spaces 
GP1   Sustainability and High Quality Design 
H2      Housing within Development Limits 
TR3    Highways in Developments- Design Considerations 
  
Carmarthenshire Supplementary Planning Guidance  
 
Nature Conservation and Biodiversity - Draft Supplementary Planning Guidance  
  
National Planning Policy and Guidance is provided in Future Wales: The National Plan 2040, 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW) Edition 11, February 2021 and associated Technical Advice 
Notes (TANs) published by Welsh Government. 
 

Summary of Consultation Responses 
 
Head of Transportation & Highways – have advised that they raise no objections 
 
Abergwili Community Council - confirmed that they have received numerous complaints 
in relation to the application and therefore the community council has no choice but to object 
to the application to protect residents’ concerns and interests. It is understood that the gates 
would encroach onto neighbouring land and restrict access to their property which could be 
perceived as trespassing. The application should be determined by the Planning Committee 
and a site visit should take place with all parties concerned. 
  
Local Member(s) - Councillor Neil Lewis has advised, following a site visit, that the proposal 
would heavily impact upon the immediate neighbours in terms of loss/inhibition of access 
and the impact of vehicles obstructing views from the adjoining property for significant 
periods whilst gates are closed. The neighbours need to work together to find an acceptable 
solution and one compromise would be to position the gates further back closer to the 
applicant’s property. 
  
All representations can be viewed in full on our website. 
 

Summary of Public Representations 
 
The application was initially the subject of notification by way of neighbouring letters and 
following amendments to the application the subject of a further re-consultation exercise 
with neighbours. 
  
In total, representations were received from 4 different households, objecting to the 
development on the following grounds: 
  
Initial consultation  
  
 The erection of gates would be in breach of all previous planning permissions granted 

on the site as they have all stipulated that the accessway should be uninterrupted. 

Page 11

http://www.cartogold.co.uk/CarmarthenshireLDP/english/text/00_Contents.htm
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/planning-policy/supplementary-planning-guidance-spg
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/planning-policy/supplementary-planning-guidance-spg/#.Y-HfCy_P25c
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/planning-policy/supplementary-planning-guidance-spg/#.Y-HfCy_P25c
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-02/future-wales-the-national-plan-2040.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-02/planning-policy-wales-edition-11_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/technical-advice-notes
https://gov.wales/technical-advice-notes
http://online.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/cccapps/english/planning/PlanAppSearch.asp


 

 

 A free accessway is necessary for emergency services and visitors to avoid waiting on 
the driveway for the gates to open. 

 Any parking in front of the gateway would be in breach of a covenant on the land and 
would impede access to the owners of Coombe Park. 

 Owners of adjacent properties have rights granted to access buildings for maintenance 
and service and therefore must had uninterrupted access, this cannot be achieved if to 
be operated electronically  

 Unable to access rear of property in an emergency 
 Delivery vehicles would frequently be unable to access the property and park in 

driveway impeding access 
 Would result in significant loss of residential amenity from the annexe building due to 

the presence of windows on that elevation and vehicles parked in close proximity and 
the proposal to erect a fence within 1m of the window. 

 Line of fence does not match the actual boundary and would impede essential 
maintenance of neighbouring buildings. 

 Original proposal designed to have sufficient turning space within the site and thus 
avoiding the need for vehicles who cannot retain access to reverse down the driveway. 

 Applicant has failed to serve the required notices on all owners of the driveway. 
 
Re-consultation responses 
 
 Revised plans are exactly the same as previous and not accurately drawn 
 The bedroom window to the annexe of Brynhawddgar is a fire escape window and 

should there be a fire any person escaping from the window would be trapped by the 
gates and not be able to escape to the roadway. 

 If this condition is removed then there is nothing preventing any of the other owners of 
the lane to erect gates on the driveway. 

 The materials would not blend into the surrounding area and buildings. 
 Vehicles would be idling immediately adjacent to bathroom, bedroom and hallway 

windows of neighbouring annexe building resulting in loss of privacy and noise 
disturbance. 

 No turning facilities for vehicles unable to gain access is provided so vehicles would 
have to reverse back onto the highway or would be tempted to use other access 

 Impinge upon legal right of access to property to enable essential maintenance 
 Side gate is unacceptable and insufficient for neighbours needs to carry out repairs and 

maintenance and would block emergency vehicles. 
 Drain and sewer pipes would be located behind gates and thus gates would vent 

emergency repairs as evidenced earlier in the year 
 No reason to improve security as property is open to the countryside 
 The changes proposed do not overcome previous objections. 
 
All representations can be viewed in full on our website. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12

http://online.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/cccapps/english/planning/PlanAppSearch.asp


 

 

Appraisal 
 
The main considerations of this case is the impact upon the living conditions of neighbouring 
residents, highway safety and impact upon the character and appearance of the area. 
  
Highway Safety 
  
All previous applications on the site have consistently imposed a condition requiring that the 
access lane leading to the dwelling remains unimpeded for highway safety reasons. The 
application now put forward seeks to vary that condition to enable the insertion of a gate 
32m from the nearside edge of the highway. 
  
The Council’s Highway Officer has reviewed the application and has commented that in 
general for a single residential dwelling, conditions are imposed to ensure that any gates 
are set back at least 5m from the carriageway edge and open inwards to ensure that a 
standard vehicle can leave the highway and park temporarily to enable opening of the 
gates. Where there is a shared drive with a shared turning/parking area, a condition is 
imposed requiring that the access remains unimpeded. 
  
In this case, the situation is irregular in that each of the properties served by the shared drive 
have their own parking/turning area including the application site property and therefore the 
installation of a gate at the proposed location would not affect the turning area associated 
with other properties. It is however recognised that in situations where vehicular access is 
required and the gates are closed that vehicles may have to reverse down the access road 
and back onto the highway. However, following further clarification of the intended operation 
of the gates via electronic means which can be controlled remotely thus enabling 
visitors/deliveries to access the property and turn within the property itself even if the 
applicant is not at home at the time, it is considered that instances where access cannot be 
gained would be limited.  
  
It is therefore considered, on balance, that the proposal would not have an unacceptable 
impact upon highway safety and would therefore comply with policies GP1 and TR3 of the 
Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan 2014. 
  
Impact upon living conditions 
  
The proposed location of the gates would be adjacent to the annexe property associated 
with Brynhawddgar. Whilst it is not considered that the physical presence of the gates by 
reason of their siting, scale and design would directly impact upon the living conditions of 
users of the annexe building, the indirect impacts caused by vehicles idling by the gates 
when they are closed as raised by neighbouring residents are acknowledged. There will 
evidently be times when vehicles would be parked/idling in front of the gates to await opening 
and that these vehicles would be within the lane adjacent to the annexe at Brynhawddgar. 
However, it is considered, that such vehicles would only be parked/idling for a short period 
of time whilst the gates are opening and that the frequency of such movements would be 
limited given the domestic use of the property. It is therefore considered, on balance, that 
the presence of vehicles adjacent to Brynhawddgar for short periods of time would not 
amount to a level of disturbance to the living conditions of those utilising the annexe that 
would be unacceptable to warrant a refusal of the application. 
  
A number of concerns have been raised by neighbouring residents regarding their stated 
rights of access to enable maintenance of their respective properties and general access. It 

Page 13



 

 

is stated that the imposition of the gates would block this right of way and be in breach of 
covenants on the land. Issues regarding land ownership, rights of way and legal covenants 
on land are not material planning considerations and are rather civil issues that are subject 
of separate legislation. Nevertheless, the agent advises that the applicant is aware of this 
legal requirement to ensure access for maintenance of neighbouring properties is 
maintained. The proposal includes the installation of a pedestrian side gate. 
  
Therefore on balance, it is not considered that that the proposal would have an unacceptable 
impact upon the living conditions of neighbours and therefore complies with Policy GP1 of 
the Local Development Plan 2014. 
  
Impact upon character and appearance of the area 
 
The proposed gates would introduce a solid gated feature within the current open access 
road. However, it is not considered that the installation of such a feature set back from the 
highway would have a detrimental impact upon the character and appearance of the area 
to warrant a refusal on such grounds and is therefore considered to comply with Policy GP1 
of the LDP. 
  
Other Matters 
  
The planning matters raised by local residents have been considered above. The remaining 
issues relate to matters of land ownership and rights of way which, as referenced above, 
are civil matters rather than material planning considerations. 
 

Planning Obligations 
 
The original permission would have triggered an affordable housing contribution. It is 
confirmed that the full contribution has been received and therefore there is no requirement 
for a further legal agreement.  
 

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
 
The decision considers the duty to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural 
well-being of Wales, in accordance with the sustainable development principle, under 
section 3 of the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (the WBFG Act). The 
decision takes into account the ways of working set out at section 5 of the WBFG Act and it 
is considered that this decision is in accordance with the sustainable development principle 
through its contribution towards one or more of the Welsh Ministers’ well-being objectives 
set out in section 8 of the WBFG Act. 
 

Conclusion 
 
After careful consideration of the scheme as submitted it is concluded on balance that the 
proposed variation of the original permission to enable the construction of vehicular gates, 
along with a pedestrian access gate and fencing would not, having regard to the particular 
circumstances of the case have a detrimental impact upon highway safety, the living 
conditions of neighbouring residents or the character and appearance of the area. The 
application is therefore considered to comply with policies GP1 and TR3 of the 
Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan 2014 and as such is recommended for approval 
subject to the below conditions. Members are advised that as this is a variation of the original 

Page 14



 

 

permission, that the conditions originally imposed and as partially varied by subsequent 
applications as referred to above are restated albeit duly amended to reflect the proposals 
put forward.  
 

 

RECOMMENDATION - Approval 
 

 

Conditions & Reasons 
 
Condition 1 
 
Notwithstanding the time limit given to implement planning permissions as prescribed by 
Sections 91 and 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) this 
permission, being a retrospective permission as precribed by Section 73A of the Act, shall 
have been deemed to have been implemented on 12th July 2018. 
  
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 
  
Condition 2 
 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans and 
documents:- 
  
 Location Plan – 1:1250 scale received on 19 October 2022 

 Block Plan – 1:500 scale received on 24 October 2022 

 Proposed Elevation of Gates received 4 April 2022 

 Block Plan (C/4574/7) received 18 September 2019 

 Section X-X and Section Y – Y (C/4574/8) received 18 September 2019 

 Elevations (as built) – 1:100 scale received on 10th August 2018; 

 Section (as built) – 1:50 scale received on 10th August 2018; 

 Second Floor Plan – 1:50 scale received on 14th December 2018; 

 First Floor (C/4574/2A) - 1:50 scale received on 23rd February 2017; 

 Ground Floor (C/4574/1A) - 1:50 scale received on 23rd February 2017; 

 Floor Plan (C/4574/5) - 1:100 and 1:50 scale received on 23rd February 2017; 

 Arboricultural Method Statement received on 23rd February 2017; 

 Surfacing Material Details received on 3rd May 2017 

 Supplementary Information report by Ceri Davies Planning Ltd, dated March 2023 

 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt as to the extent of the permission hereby granted and 
to secure an acceptable development in accordance with Policy GP1 of the 
Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan 2014. 
  
Condition 3 
 
There shall at no time be any growth or obstruction to visibility over 0.9 metres above the 
adjacent carriageway crown, over the site's whole U2097 Road frontage as delineated on 

Page 15



 

 

the Location Plan received on 19 October 2022 within 2.4 metres of the near edge of the 
carriageway. 
  
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy TR3 of the 
Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan 2014. 
  
Condition 4 
 
The access, visibility splays and turning area shall be retained unobstructed in perpetuity. In 
particular, no part of the access, visibility splays, or turning area, is to be obstructed by non-
motorised vehicles. 
  
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy TR3 of the 
Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan 2014. 
 
Condition 5 
 
The parking spaces and layout shown on the plans herewith shall be retained, unobstructed, 
for the purpose of parking only. In particular, no part of the parking or turning facilities is to 
be obstructed by non-motorised vehicles. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy TR3 of the 
Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan 2014. 
 
Condition 6 
 
The shared private drive shall be hard surfaced for a minimum distance of 10.0 metres 
behind the highway boundary in tarmac. The hard surfacing shall be fully carried out prior 
to any part of the development approved herewith being brought into use. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy TR3 of the 
Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan 2014.  
 

Notes / Informatives 
 
Note 1 
 
Please note that this consent is specific to the plans and particulars approved as part of the 
application. Any departure from the approved plans will constitute unauthorised 
development and may be liable to enforcement action. You (or any subsequent developer) 
should advise the Council of any actual or proposed variations from the approved plans 
immediately so that you can be advised how to best resolve the matter. 
  
In addition, any Conditions which the Council has imposed on this consent will be listed 
above and should be read carefully. It is your (or any subsequent developers') responsibility 
to ensure that the terms of all Conditions are met in full at the appropriate time (as outlined 
in the specific condition). 
  
The commencement of development without firstly meeting in full the terms of any 
Conditions which require the submission of details prior to the commencement of 
development will constitute unauthorised development. This will necessitate the submission 

Page 16



 

 

of a further application to retain the unauthorised development and may render you liable to 
formal enforcement action. 
  
Failure on the part of the developer to observe the requirements of any other Conditions 
could result in the Council pursuing formal enforcement action in the form of a Breach of 
Condition Notice. 
  
Note 2 
 
Comments and guidance received from consultees relating to this application, including any 
other permissions or consents required, is available on the Authority’s website 
(www.carmarthenshire.gov.uk).  
 
 
 
 
  

Page 17

http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/


 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
APPLICATIONS RECOMMENDED FOR REFUSAL 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 18



 

 

 
Application No 
 

 
PL/04739 

 

Application Type Full planning permission 

Proposal Erection of a rural enterprise dwelling and associated works 

 
Location 
 

Treale, Velindre, Llandysul, SA44 5XU 

 

Applicant(s) Rhydian and Caryl Williams 

Officer Charlotte Ford 

Ward Cenarth and Llangeler 

 
Date of validation 
 

28/09/2022 

 

Reason for Committee 
 
This application is being reported to the Planning Committee following a call-in request by 
Cllr Ken Howell on grounds that he wishes for the committee to have the opportunity to 
discuss the principle of the application and its compliance with national policy.  
 

Site 
 
The application site known as Treale Farm is located in the open countryside with the 
nearest town being Newcastle Emlyn located to the North West. The site is located within 
the community ward of Llangeler. The site has no immediate neighbours and is surrounded 
by the farm yard and facilities and open countryside. Access to site is via an existing farm 
track which leads both to the B4333 to the South West or a minor county maintained highway 
to the North East. The Afon Bran runs to the North West and North East of the Farm holding, 
which is a tributary to the Afon Teifi. 
 
The application site relates to a field area approximately 32m south west of the main farm 
yard with the application site being at a higher level than the farm yard area. The application 
site itself is currently down to improved grass and used for grazing and is exposed with open 
far reaching views towards the north. The site is defined by field boundaries comprising 
hedgerows and gently slopes to the south. 
 

 
 
 

Page 19



 

 

Proposal  
 
Full planning permission is sought for the construction of a rural enterprise dwelling and 
associated works in line with TAN6 policy. The proposed dwelling is to be located to the 
south west of the existing farm house and farm complex on an area of land historically know 
as y ‘berllan’. The applicant has stated stated this parcel of land has been used for domestic 
purposes such as the clothes line, and keeping pet lambs etc.  
 
The proposed dwelling will be made up a two storey main element and subservient single 
storey side elements. The westerly side element will provide a day room, the easterly 
element will be utilised for farm use only, with the inclusion of a farm office and space for 
seasonal farm workers accommodation, below this element there is a garage. As illustrated 
by the submitted floor plans, the proposal is for a 4 bedroom property to provide suitable 
accommodation to the applicants family whom require 4 bedrooms. With regards to 
highways arrangements, parking and turning will be provided to the front of the dwelling, 
and amenity space to the sides and rear.   
 
The application is supported by a Rural Dwelling Appraisal with supplementary information 
which gives further details of the existing enterprise and the justification for the proposed 
new dwelling. 
 

Planning Site History 
 
PL/05015 - Construction Of Concrete Slurry Store, Agricultural Shed And Associated Works 
- Full Granted - 14/02/2023 
 
PL/04992 - Erection Of A Concrete Silage Clamp, Roof And Associated Works - Full Granted 
- 28/02/2023 
 
PL/03816 - Erection Of Roof Over Existing Silage Clamp - Full Granted - 28/04/2022 
 
PL/03592 - Erection Of General Purpose Agricultural Storage Building - Full Granted - 
24/03/2022 
 
W/38791 - Erection Of An Agricultural Portal Building To Cover An Existing Cattle Handling 
Yard - 30/05/2019 
 
W/38789 - Construction Of An Agricultural Silage Clamp And Associated Engineering 
Operation - Full Granted - 30/5/2019 
 
W/37630 - Erection Of Agricultural Building Over Existing Cattle Feeding Area (As Approved 
Under Planning Permission W/35520) - Full Granted 16/10/2018 
 
W/35520 - Erection Of Agricultural Building And Associated Engineering Operation To 
Include Slurry Storage Facilities - Full Granted - 20/6/2017 
 
W/30704 - Excavation Of Shale To Create Farm Cattle Tracks - Prior Approval Not Required 
- 08/09/2014 
 
W/30703 - New Agricultural Building - Prior Approval Not Required - 08/09/2014 
 
W/30702 - Proposed Road - Prior Approval Not Required - 08/09/2014 

Page 20



 

 

 
W/30419 - Application To Dismantle And Re-Route A Section Of Overhead Electricity Line, 
Including Changing Some Poles And Laying Some Underground Cable - Overhead Line 
Approval - 20/08/2014 
 
TMT/02609 - Multi Purpose Agricultural Building - Full Granted 06/12/2002 
 
W/00029 - Alterations To Dwelling And Installation Of New Septic Tank - Full Granted 
21/05/1996 
 
D4/20876 - Electricity Supply - Full Granted - 11/3/1991 
 
D4/20324 - Construction of an Agricultural Dwelling- Full Granted - 26/10/1990 
 

Planning Policy 
 
Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan (Adopted December 2014) (‘the LDP’) 
 SP1  Sustainable Places and Spaces. 
SP14 Protection and Enhancement of the Natural Environment                                           
GP1  Sustainability and High Quality Design 
TR3  Highways in Developments – Design Considerations. 
 
National Planning Policy and Guidance is provided in Future Wales: The National Plan 2040, 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW) Edition 11, February 2021 and associated Technical Advice 
Notes (TANs) published by Welsh Government.  
 
(TAN) 6: Planning or Sustainable Rural Communities (July 2010) is particularly relevant for 
this application.  
 

Summary of Consultation Responses 
 
Head of Transportation & Highways - No objections. 
  
Valuations Manager – Comments received state that there is a functional need for the 
farming enterprise to have worker on site. However, has raised concerns that the 310sq.m 
dwelling does not comply with the TAN6 requirements that the property be alternatively 
available as an affordable dwelling whilst taking into account flexibility to allow for extra 
office/boot room/utility space associated with a rural enterprise dwelling. It is also stated that 
the seasonal workers accommodation is not justified in the application and as such is not 
supported. 
  
Llangeler Community Council – No Comments received. 
  
Local Member(s) - Councillor Ken Howells has requested the application be determined at 
committee. Councillor Hazel Jones has supports the application. 
  
Sustainable Drainage Body – has confirmed that a Sustainable Drainage Body consent 
for the development will be required prior to any works commencing. 
  
All representations can be viewed in full on our website. 
 

Page 21

http://www.cartogold.co.uk/CarmarthenshireLDP/english/text/00_Contents.htm
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-02/future-wales-the-national-plan-2040.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-02/planning-policy-wales-edition-11_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/technical-advice-notes
https://gov.wales/technical-advice-notes
http://online.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/cccapps/english/planning/PlanAppSearch.asp


 

 

Summary of Public Representations 
 
The application was the subject of notification by way of the posting of a site notice, no 
representations were received on the application at the time of writing this report.  
 

Appraisal 
 
The proposal involves the creation of a new dwelling in the countryside which is generally 
not considered acceptable in principle. It is only in exceptional circumstances that planning 
permission for the creation of a dwelling is considered within the countryside, such 
exceptions include conversions of traditional rural buildings to dwellings, dwellings in 
association with local affordable housing needs, dwellings associated with One Planet 
Developments and Rural Enterprise Dwellings. This application has been submitted on the 
basis of seeking permission for a Rural Enterprise Dwelling. 
 
The total area farmed by the farming enterprise is approximately 550 acres 180 of which are 
located at Treale. A planning history search of the application site indicates that a rural 
enterprise dwelling has previously been granted for the farm known as ‘Treale’ under 
application reference D4/20324 in 1990. Although the applicant has stipulated in 
correspondence that the dwelling is not in the ownership of the applicant and is not currently 
associated with the farm Treale. Nevertheless, in light of this, the proposed dwelling is 
considered to be the third dwelling in association with the agricultural holding. As such, the 
main consideration of this case is whether the proposal complies with Welsh Government’s 
guidance set out in TAN6 in relation to a new rural enterprise dwelling on an existing holding. 
Section 4.4.1 (TAN6) states that: 
  
‘New permanent dwellings should only be allowed to support established rural 
enterprises providing: 
 
a) there is a clearly established existing functional need; 
b) the need relates to a full-time worker, and does not relate to a part-time requirement;  
c) the enterprise concerned has been established for at least three years, profitable for at 

least one of them and both the enterprise and the business need for the job, is currently 
financially sound, and has a clear prospect of remaining so; 

d) the functional need could not be fulfilled by another dwelling or by converting an existing 
suitable building already on the land holding comprising the enterprise, or any other 
existing accommodation in the locality which is suitable and available for occupation by 
the worker concerned; 

e) other normal planning requirements, for example siting and access, are satisfied.’ 
  
The following sets out how the development addresses each of the above tests: 
  
Functional Test 
 
A functional test is necessary to establish whether it is essential, for the proper functioning 
of the enterprise, for one or more workers to be readily available at most times. This 
application relates to a large dairy enterprise with additional beef and sheep rearing 
elements. Farming activities include; calf rearing, lambing from January to March, Feeding 
milk to young calves, general feeding, bedding etc, health monitoring, taking deliveries and 
security of the site. 
 

Page 22



 

 

Given the size and scale of the business and the lambing, calving and milking operations 
the functional need for a workers dwelling is accepted. 
  
Time Test 
 
As the functional requirement is established, it is necessary to consider the number 
of workers needed to meet it, for which the scale and nature of the enterprise will be relevant. 
The current workers on site are the 3 farm partners and the occasional milk relief staff, 
however only 2 farm partners reside on the application site with 1 working at present and 
the level of work carried outside normal working hours proving unsustainable. The 
application shows a total calculated annual labour requirement for the holding of 9.3 
Standard Man Days. The calculation has been assessed and it appears realistic given the 
activities and scale of the enterprise. This is accepted and confirms that there is the 
additional full time job needed in relation to this application 
 
However, the proposed plans includes a farm office and one additional room on the ground 
floor for a seasonal farm worker/student worker. Due to the scale of the enterprise it is 
envisage in the future that student placements will be offered. It is hoped that a purpose built 
space would attract such help during busy times. The application does not fully justify this 
element of the proposal and its requirement and as such it is not supported. 
 
Financial Test 
 
Tan6 stipulates the rural enterprise and the activity concerned should be financially sound 
and should have good prospects of remaining economically sustainable for a reasonable 
period of time, usually at least 5 years. The agricultural enterprise has been in existence for 
a number of years and the application has been supported by details of the financial 
accounts for the farm which indicate that the farm has been profitable and it is considered 
based on the information before the Authority that there is a reasonable prospect that the 
business will remain viable. The application is therefore considered to comply with this 
element of the financial test.  
 
However, TAN6 specifies that the enterprise needs to be able to afford to build and maintain 
the dwelling and that dwellings that are unusually large in relation to the needs of the 
enterprise should not be permitted. It further explains that it is the requirements of the 
enterprise rather than of the intended occupier which are relevant to determine the size of 
the dwelling that is appropriate. The agricultural appraisal stipulates the dwelling is to 
become the principle farm dwelling and is stated to be reflective of the scale of the farming 
enterprise and to home the applicants family which includes 3 children. 
  
In this case, the dwelling is a large 4 bedroom detached property with a gross internal floor 
area of 310sq.m. This would compare with a floorspace of 107sq.m that is deemed to be an 
equivalent 4 bedroom affordable dwelling in this location. Officers accept the needs for 
additional study/utility rooms in association with rural enterprise dwellings and therefore 
allowances can be made for a larger dwelling than for an affordable dwelling but not more 
than double the floorspace as is proposed in this instance. Therefore, it is considered that 
the proposed dwelling, by reason of its excessive scale, fails to have regard to its use as an 
affordable dwelling contrary to policy AH3 of the Carmarthenshire LDP and the advice set 
out in TAN6. 
  
 
 

Page 23



 

 

Other Dwelling Test 
 
As previously stated planning permission was granted in 1990 for the erection of a rural 
enterprise dwelling for the agricultural holding associated with Treale, however the applicant 
has stated this is not associated to the holding and is not in the ownership of the enterprise. 
There is currently one dwelling on site known as Treale which is a sizeable farmhouse on 
the property. It is noted that there are existing buildings on site which could be suitable for 
conversion, however some are still in use and those further from the working buildings are 
small and not well suited to creating a four bedroom dwelling without significant repair, 
alteration and extension.  
  
With regard to the size and scale of the dwelling this is considered overly large. To comply 
with the policy the dwelling must have the potential for alternative use as an affordable 
dwelling in the event the farm enterprise no longer needs it. The proposed 4 bedroom 
dwelling is comprised of the garage (38sq.m), the office/ farm worker element (40sq.m), the 
ground floor (125sq.m), and first floor measuring 107sq.m. Consultee comments received 
from the valuations officer conclude and supports that farm workers dwellings typically need 
additional facilities such as a ground floor shower room, boot room and office. Nevertheless, 
a floor area of circa 145-150sq.m is typical, with the average size for a 6 person 4 bedroom 
affordable unit being 107sq.m. Furthermore, the extra accommodation for the seasonal farm 
worker is not justified as part of the proposal. 
  
In light of the above it is considered the proposed dwelling is overly large and is not 
supported.  
  
Other Planning Requirement Test 
  
Siting 
 
Paragraph 4.12.1 of TAN6 specifies, “the siting of the proposed dwelling should relate 
closely to the activities for which there is a need. In most cases this will mean that the new 
dwelling should be sited in close proximity to existing buildings and in the case of dwellings 
for agricultural enterprises, should not be isolated from the farmstead or in locations that 
could encourage farm fragmentation. Local planning authorities should resist planning 
applications for rural enterprise dwellings that are prominent in the landscape”. 
  
In addition to the TAN6 locational criteria, it is also necessary to consider the impact of the 
dwelling on the wider landscape. The immediate surrounding area is characterised by open 
agricultural fields on the upper slopes of elevated ground, defined by low largely windswept 
hedgerows. Whilst there are scattered dwellings within the wider area, the majority are 
historic properties associated with historic farmsteads which are co-located with agricultural 
buildings. The site is adjacent to the existing farm yard. It is deemed the location of the 
proposal is adjacent to the existing farm house and will not negatively impact on the local 
landscape in line with policy GP1 Sustainability and High Quality Design of the LDP, and 
TAN 6. 
  
Design 
 
With regard to the size and scale of the dwelling this is considered overly large and there is 
already a sizeable farmhouse on the property. Consultee comments received from the 
valuations advise a floor area of circa 145-150sq.m is typical, with the average size for a 6 
person 4 bedroom affordable unit being 107sq.m. As part of the planning application process 

Page 24



 

 

these concerns were raised to the applicant and amendments to the scale of the dwelling 
were requested as the original scale of the proposed dwelling measured in excess of 
391sq.m. Following this, amendments to the scale were submitted however these were not 
sufficient to alleviate the concerns of officers as the reduction was only minimal taking the 
dwelling to 310sq.m.  
  
In light of the above it is considered the proposed dwelling is overly large and is not 
supported and is contrary to Policies GP1 and AH3 of the adopted Carmarthenshire Local 
Development Plan (2014) and Sections 4.4 and 4.10.2 of Technical Advice Note 6: Planning 
for Sustainable Rural Communities (July 2010). 
  
Access 
 
The application site is served by an existing access track and two access points onto county 
maintained highways. There is more than sufficient space within the plot which would be 
provided for car parking. Following consultation with the highways department no objection 
has been received. As such, the application would not have an unacceptable impact upon 
highway safety and therefore is compliant with policies TR2 and TR3 of the LDP and TAN18. 
 
Other Material Planning Considerations 
 
Phosphorous Sensitive Area 
 
The application site is within the catchment of the River Teifi Special Area of Conservation 
(SAC). As part of the application a new package treatment plant and drainage field are to 
be installed, replacing the existing septic tank, to serve the new dwelling and the existing 
property on site. Concerns were raised regarding phosphorous from NRW however following 
further information submitted by the applicant including percolation tests CCC ecologists 
reviewed the application and ‘screened out’ the application from undertaking a Appropriate 
Assessment under Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 
2017 (as amended) following NRWs guidelines. 
 
Biodiversity 
 
The Environment (Wales) Act 2016, PPW (Edition 11, February 2021) and Future Wales, 
The National Plan 2040 (Policy 9) requires the Local Planning Authority to seek to enhance 
biodiversity through the planning process, Within the Planning Statement submitted it states 
a native species hedge will be planted around the site boundary and the mature tree in the 
East of the site will be retained. It is deemed this is adequate ecological enhancement given 
the nature and scale of the proposal. 
 
Contaminated Land 
 
As the application site is adjacent to an agricultural enterprise contaminated land were 
consulted as part of the proposal. Following consultation there was no objection raised. 
 

Planning Obligations 
 
The initial affordability and use as a rural enterprise dwelling could be retained for all 
subsequent occupants through the completion of a Section 106 agreement to effectively 
control the future sale of the property. This has not been pursued with the applicants given 
the fundamental objection to the development as outlined above. 

Page 25



 

 

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
 
The decision considers the duty to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural 
well-being of Wales, in accordance with the sustainable development principle, under 
section 3 of the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (the WBFG Act). The 
decision takes into account the ways of working set out at section 5 of the WBFG Act and it 
is considered that this decision is in accordance with the sustainable development principle 
through its contribution towards one or more of the Welsh Ministers’ well-being objectives 
set out in section 8 of the WBFG Act. 
 

Conclusion 
 
After careful consideration of the scheme as submitted, it is concluded that the proposed 
development would be contrary to Policy and does not comply with the requirements of 
Welsh Government Technical Advice Note 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities 
and is therefore recommended for refusal. It is considered that a dwelling of the scale 
proposed is not acceptable and would not be compatible with that of an affordable dwelling 
that could, in the future, be available to those on low or moderate incomes. The proposal 
therefore represents a prominent, unjustified development in the open countryside contrary 
to Policies GP1 and AH3 of the adopted Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan (2014). 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION - Refusal 
 

 

Conditions & Reasons 
 
Reason 1 
 
Insufficient justification has been provided to demonstrate that the scale of the proposed 
dwelling is necessary and would reflect the needs of the enterprise. Furthermore, it is not 
considered that a dwelling of the scale proposed would be compatible with that of an 
affordable dwelling that could, in the future, be available to those on low or moderate 
incomes. The proposal therefore represents a prominent, unjustified development in the 
open countryside that is considered to be detrimental to the character and appearance of 
the area. The proposal is contrary to Policy GP1 and AH3 of the adopted Carmarthenshire 
Local Development Plan (2014) and Sections 4.4 and 4.10.2 of Technical Advice Note 6: 
Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities (July 2010). 
 
Reason 2 
 
The applicant has failed to enter into a S106 legal agreement to control the occupancy of 
both the existing and proposed dwelling and to tie the proposed dwelling to the agricultural 
holding. The proposal would therefore result in an unencumbered and unjustified isolated 
new dwelling in the open countryside. As such, the proposal is contrary to Policies AH1 of 
the Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan (adopted December 2014) and 
Supplementary Planning Guidance documents: Affordable Housing (adopted June 2018) 
and Planning Obligations (adopted December 2014) paragraphs 4.5.3 and 4.13.3 of 
Technical Advice Note 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities (July 2010) and 
paragraphs 3.60, 4.2.36 – 4.2.37 of Planning Policy Wales (11th Edition) February 2021. 
 

Page 26



 

 

 
 
Application No 
 

 
PL/05366 

 

Application Type Full planning permission 

Proposal 
Replacement of lawful caravan & decking with dwelling & integral 
garage (Re-submission following refusal of PL/04327) 

 
Location 
 

The Caravan, Springwells Farm, Llanboidy, Whitland, SA34 0EB 

 

Applicant(s) Robert Kendall 

Agent Hayston Developments & Planning Ltd - Andrew Vaughan-Harries 

Officer Charlotte Greves 

Ward Llanboidy 

 
Date of validation 
 

02/02/2023 

 

Reason for Committee 
 
This application is being reported to the Planning Committee following a call-in request by 
the Local Member and member of the Planning Committee, Councillor Dorian Phillips. 
 

Site 
 
The application relates to a triangular parcel of land which is currently occupied by a static 
caravan with associated garden and parking areas situated adjacent to a property known as 
Springwells Farm located approximately 1km north of Whitland. Access to the farm and site 
is achieved from the C3205 county road to the east.  
 
The caravan has timber decking to the eastern side immediately adjacent to the parking 
area which then connects to the access lane which runs through the site. The site also 
contains a single storey storage building in a poor state of repair to the immediate north west 
of the caravan. The site benefits from mains electric and water connections and a private 
septic tank and soakaway. 
  
The site is bordered by established hedgebanks (topped by trees) to the west whilst there 
is an access lane leading to a neighbouring farm Maes Y Deri to the east defined by post & 
wire fencing. The land surrounding the application site forms part of Springwells Farm which 
is in the ownership of the applicant’s family, to the north is a bungalow (Springwell) which is 

Page 27



 

 

occupied by the applicant’s parents whilst there is a large agricultural building accessed via 
the lane through the site immediately to the south. 
 

Proposal  
 
The application is a resubmitted planning application of PL/04327 which seeks planning 
permission for the erection of a single storey 4-bedroomed replacement bungalow on the 
site of the existing static caravan.  
  
The proposed dwelling is to be L shaped and sited on a north-south axis within the site with 
parking and access areas to the north and east and a garden area to the south and west. 
Foul drainage is proposed to the existing septic tank to the east of the existing caravan whilst 
new surface water soakaways are also proposed within the garden area to the northwest 
and southwest of the proposed dwelling. The scheme also proposes new landscaping 
elements within the existing garden area.  
  
The proposed dwelling design comprises a single storey pitched roof structure with a main 
forward projecting gable to the front (eastern) elevation and two smaller projecting gables to 
the front & rear elevations. The dwelling is to be finished in cement render with an area of 
composite cladding to the front elevation under a slated roof whilst windows & doors are to 
be finished in UPVC or powder coated aluminium (dark grey). Internally the dwelling will 
comprise four bedrooms, lounge, integrated kitchen/diner, utility room and bathroom. The 
larger forward projecting gable extension off the front elevation is to host an integrated 
double garage. 
 

Planning Site History 
 
PL/04327 - Replacement of lawful caravan and decking with dwelling and Integral Garage - 
Full Refusal - 10/10/2022 
 
PL/03599 - Certificate of lawful development for the retention of a residential caravan and 
associated garden & Parking area (10 years) - CLEUD - Approval - 19/4/2022 
 
D4/14617 - ELECTRICITY SUPPLY - Full Granted - 12/6/1987 
 

Planning Policy 
 
Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan (Adopted December 2014) (‘the LDP’)  
Policy SP1    Sustainable Places and Spaces 
Policy SP 5   Housing 
Policy SP 6   Affordable Housing 
Policy GP1   Sustainability and High Quality Design 
Policy H4      Replacement Dwellings  
   
Carmarthenshire Supplementary Planning Guidance    
 
National Planning Policy and Guidance is provided in Future Wales: The National Plan 2040, 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW) Edition 11, February 2021 and associated Technical Advice 
Notes (TANs) published by Welsh Government.  

 
Summary of Consultation Responses 

Page 28

http://www.cartogold.co.uk/CarmarthenshireLDP/english/text/00_Contents.htm
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/planning-policy/supplementary-planning-guidance-spg
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-02/future-wales-the-national-plan-2040.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-02/planning-policy-wales-edition-11_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/technical-advice-notes
https://gov.wales/technical-advice-notes


 

 

 
Llanboidy Community Council - No observations received to date. 
  
Local Member(s) – Cllr Dorian Phillips, Local Member and Member of the Planning 
Committee, has requested that the application is called to planning committee if it is to be 
recommended for refusal.  
  
All representations can be viewed in full on our website. 
 

Summary of Public Representations 
 
The application has been the subject of notification by way of a site notice. Three 
representations have been received expressing support for the proposed development.  
 
All representations can be viewed in full on our website 
 

Appraisal 
 
Principle of the Development 
  
The proposal relates to the replacement of a static caravan, which benefits from a certificate 
of lawfulness that confirms its residential status, with a permanent dwelling. That Certificate 
(planning reference PL/03599) was issued based on the details submitted which were 
considered sufficient to confirm that a caravan had been in position for a period in excess of 
10 years and that the residential use of the caravan and the surrounding land as identified 
by the red line for that period of time had also been established. The Certificate is specific 
in that it refers to the unit as a caravan which complies with the requirements of the definition 
of a caravan as set out in the Caravan Act 1960 as amended by the Caravan Sites Act 1968. 
It was not deemed to be a permanent building, as such the present lawful status of the unit 
in question is that of a caravan and not a permanent building.  
  
Replacement dwelling  
  
Policy H4 of the Carmarthenshire LDP states that the replacement of existing dwellings 
outside defined Development Limits will be acceptable subject to various criteria.  
The critical criterion in this case is criterion b) which specifies that the existing building 
cannot be a temporary structure nor the subject of a temporary consent. As set out above, 
the lawful status of the existing unit is that of a static caravan which by its nature is a 
temporary structure in that it is not considered to be a building. It is considered that the 
caravan remains capable of being moved and therefore remains to fall within the definition 
of a caravan as assessed under the recent CLEUD application. Furthermore, it is not 
considered that the fact that the caravan has an established residential use is sufficient to 
outweigh this policy position nor the assertion that its replacement with a permanent dwelling 
would create a more aesthetically pleasing development. As such its replacement with a 
permanent dwelling would directly conflict with criterion b) of Policy H4. 
  
In terms of the remaining criteria of Policy H4 the proposed replacement dwelling and garage 
would be located on the footprint of the static caravan, albeit occupying a larger footprint, 
and therefore criterion a is satisfied. In terms of the scale of the dwelling, whilst larger than 
the existing caravan, it is not considered that the proposed dwelling would be 
disproportionate in scale to the existing caravan and the design and materials would be 
appropriate to the character and appearance of the area in accordance with criteria c and 

Page 29

http://online.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/cccapps/english/planning/PlanAppSearch.asp
http://online.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/cccapps/english/planning/PlanAppSearch.asp


 

 

d. Furthermore, the proposal does not give rise to concerns in relation to highways safety, 
utilities, local amenity, biodiversity or the surrounding landscape in accordance with the 
criteria e and f. Having regard to the final criterion, there will be a need for the existing 
caravan to be removed from the site to allow the new dwelling to be built and therefore the 
proposal would also accord with criterion f.  
  
Notwithstanding the above it is considered that a proposal to replace the existing static 
caravan with a permanent dwelling would directly conflict with Policy H4 and there are 
insufficient material planning considerations to indicate otherwise. 
  
Other matters 
  
Personal circumstances 
  
Whilst the applicant’s personal circumstances as set out in the supporting information 
submitted with the application are acknowledged, the application has not been presented 
as a dwelling for local needs or as required for a rural enterprise and as such has not been 
assessed as such.  
 
Fallback position and precedent cases 
  
The applicant draws officers attention to the fall-back position relating to the fact that there 
is a lawful caravan that enjoys a certificate of lawful use for permanent residential purposes 
on the site that can be replaced and upgraded. Furthermore, the applicant contends that the 
use of the site can be intensified without the need for planning permission.  
  
As explained earlier in the report, the fallback position is clear in that it specifically relates to 
a single residential caravan and associated garden and parking area as identified on the 
plan submitted with the approved certificate application. As such officers contend that only 
a single residential unit that would meet the definition of a caravan could be lawfully placed 
on the land and in residential use.  
  
The applicant has also drawn attention to case law, appeal decisions and alleged precedent 
cases which they consider support their case however there is equally a number of cases 
that support the council's position and in any event each case is determined on its own 
individual merits.  
 

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
 
The decision considers the duty to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural 
well-being of Wales, in accordance with the sustainable development principle, under 
section 3 of the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (the WBFG Act). The 
decision takes into account the ways of working set out at section 5 of the WBFG Act and it 
is considered that this decision is in accordance with the sustainable development principle 
through its contribution towards one or more of the Welsh Ministers’ well-being objectives 
set out in section 8 of the WBFG Act. 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 30



 

 

Conclusion 
 
After careful consideration of the scheme as submitted, it is concluded that the proposed 
development would be contrary to Policy H4 Replacement Dwellings of the Carmarthenshire 
Local Development Plan 2014 in that the lawful status of the existing unit is that of a static 
caravan. The current unit as a whole is capable of being moved from one place to another 
and given its dimensions falls within the definition of a caravan. The current unit on site 
therefore is considered to be a temporary structure, the replacement of which by a 
permanent dwelling is not permissible by criterion (b) of Policy H4. The proposal would 
therefore result in the creation of a new permanent dwelling in the open countryside with no 
information having been provided to demonstrate that any exceptions would be applicable 
in this instance, contrary to Policy H4 and paragraph 3.60 of Planning Policy Wales Edition 
11 (2021). It is not considered that there are sufficient material considerations that would 
outweigh the policy objection. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION - Refusal 
 

 

Conditions & Reasons 
 
Reason 1 
 
The proposed development would be contrary to Policy H4 Replacement Dwellings of the 
Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan 2014 in that the lawful status of the existing unit 
is that of a static caravan. The current unit as a whole is capable of being moved from one 
place to another and given its dimensions falls within the definition of a caravan. The current 
unit on site therefore is considered to be a temporary structure, the replacement of which 
by a permanent dwelling is not permissible by criterion (b) of Policy H4. The proposal would 
therefore result in the creation of a new permanent dwelling in the open countryside with no 
information having been provided to demonstrate that any exceptions would be applicable 
in this instance, contrary to Policy H4 and paragraph 3.60 of Planning Policy Wales Edition 
11 (2021). It is not considered that there are sufficient material considerations that would 
outweigh the policy objection. 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY, 27 APRIL 2023  
 

PRESENT: Councillor W.T. Evans (Chair) (In Person) 
 
Councillors (In Person):  
J.M. Charles P. Cooper J.K. Howell A.C. Jones 
B.D.J. Phillips R. Sparks G.B. Thomas D.E. Williams 

 
Councillors (Virtually):  
M. Donoghue N. Evans M.J.A. Lewis D. Owen 
E. Skinner M. Thomas   
 
Also Present (In Person): 
R. Griffiths, Head of Place and Sustainability; 
S. Murphy, Senior Solicitor; 
I.R. Llewelyn, Forward Planning Manager; 
J. Thomas, Senior Development Management Officer [Aman Gwendraeth]; 
S. Rees, Simultaneous Translator; 
R. Morris, Members Support Officer; 
M.S. Davies, Democratic Services Officer; 
 
Also Present (Virtually): 
H. Rice, Senior Development Management Officer; 
Z.A. Evans, Senior Technician [Planning Liaison]; 
M. Runeckles, Members Support Officer; 
 
Chamber, County Hall, Carmarthen and remotely: 10.00 am - 10.30 am 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

An apology for absence was received from Cllr. S.M. Allen.  
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTERESTS 
There were no declarations of personal interest. 
 

3. DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 
3.1      RESOLVED that the following planning applications be granted subject 

to the conditions detailed within the Report/Addendum of the Head of 
Place and Sustainability and / or reported at the meeting:- 

  
PL/04946 Proposed reinstatement of abandoned dwelling to 

include conversion of adjacent outbuilding into part of 
the dwelling and all associated works to include a 
modest side extension to link the two buildings at 
Blaenaufforest, Ffarmers, Llanwrda, SA19 8QH; 

PL/05480 Replacement of the existing temporary amenity block 
with a permanent structure at Pembrey Caravan Club, 
Factory Road, Pembrey, Burry Port, SA16 0EJ; 

  

Page 33

Agenda Item 4



 

3.2    PL/04641 - Proposed part conversion of an agricultural building 
adjacent to the Farmhouse at Cilwr Uchaf to provide ancillary 
accommodation, together with all other associated works at Cilwr 
Uchaf, Talley, Llandeilo, SA19 7BQ. 

  
The Committee was advised that the application had been withdrawn by 
the applicant.  

 
4. MINUTES - 30TH MARCH 2023 

 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on the 
30th March, 2023 be signed as a correct record. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________    __________________ 
CHAIR       DATE 
 

Page 34



 

 
 
 

PLANNING SERVICE PERFORMANCE - QUARTER 4 
 

Recommendations / key decisions required: 
• To note core indicators and performance for Quarter 4 of 2022/23. 

 
 
Reasons:  

• To provide information updating on the performance of aspects of the 
planning function of the Council. 

• To reflect part of the ongoing response to the recommendations contained 
in the Wales Audit Office report 

• To reflect the ongoing commitment to performance management and 
monitoring 

 
Relevant scrutiny committee to be consulted   NO  

 

Cabinet Decision Required        NO  

Council Decision Required         NO  

CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER:-   Cllr. Ann Davies 

Directorate 
Environment 
 
Name of Head of Service: 
Rhodri Griffiths 
 
Report Author: 
Ian Llewelyn 

 
Designations: 
 
Head of Place and 
Sustainability 
 
 
Forward Planning 
Manager 

 

 
Tel Nos. 01267 246270 
 
E Mail Addresses: 
RGriffiths@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
01267 228816 
IRLlewelyn@sirgar.gov.uk 

 
 

Planning Committee
25th May 2023

Page 35

Agenda Item 5

mailto:RGriffiths@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:IRLlewelyn@sirgar.gov.uk


 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Planning Committee – 25th May 2023 

 
   Planning Service Performance – Quarter 4 

1. SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT. 
 
To provide planning committee members with a Quarterly reports and subsequent end of year 
reports on the performance recorded within the Planning Service and notably Development 
Management and Enforcement.  It should be noted that this report is presented as part of the 
commitment to Performance Monitoring and as part of an ongoing commitment to report to 
Planning Committee.   
 
The core indicators set out in the report will form part of our quarterly performance reporting for 
the Division. 
 
This report details the performance for Quarter 4 for the period between January 2022 and 
March 2023 and end of year.  It also contains includes the comparative quarterly data for 
previous quarters and 2021/22.   
 
 
 
2. Performance Indicators 
 
The report identifies an extensive set of core performance monitoring indicators which will form 
part of the future monitoring of the planning services performance.  These include both 
“National Indicators” and those identified by this Council.  
 
The indicators seek to clearly convey performance to the committee and will along with other 
performance measures see a continued focus on performance improvement.  The indicators 
reflect and include a range of areas of the planning service including determination of planning 
applications, enforcement, pre-applications and appeals. 
 
The identified core performance indicators and the performance outcomes are set out in the 
appended report: 
 
 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES  
 

 
 
 

Page 36



 

 
 

IMPLICATIONS 

 
 

3. Finance   
Planning performance has the potential for significant financial implications in the event 
that the determination of applications are over time or an extension of time has not been 
negotiated then if requested, the planning fee is returned. 
 
The financial impacts arising from decision making and in particular costs awarded at 
appeal are noted.  The report details costs noting that they derive from refusals against 
officer recommendations. 
 

 
 5. Risk Management Issues 
The report reflects the commitment to service improvement as a result of the Wales Audit 
report into the Planning Service.  There is a corporate recognition of performance risks 
associated with failure to act on the recommendations of the report. 

 
 
 
 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report: 
 
Signed:    R Griffiths                                                            Head of Place and Sustainability                            

 
Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal 
 

Finance 
 

ICT 
 

Risk 
Management 
Issues 
 

 

Staffing 
Implications 

 

Physical 
Assets  

 

NONE 
 

NONE 
 

YES  
 

NONE 
 

YES  NONE 
 

NONE 
 

Page 37



 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below 
 
Signed:  R Griffiths                                                               Head of Place and Sustainability                                             

 
 
1. Scrutiny Committee 
N/A 
 
2.Local Member(s)   
N/A  
 
3.Community / Town Council  
N/A 
 
4.Relevant Partners   
N/A 
 
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   
N/A 

 
CABINET PORTFOLIO HOLDER(S) 
AWARE/CONSULTED  

Yes 

Portfolio holder briefed.  

 
  

Page 38



 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THERE ARE NONE   
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

   
     
   

 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Planning Performance Monitoring - Core Indicators 
Reporting to Planning Committee  
 

Quarter 4 - January to March 2023 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT. 
 
To provide planning committee members with a Quarterly updates and end of year reports 
on the performance recorded within the Planning Service and notably Development 
Management and Enforcement.   
 
It should be noted that this report is presented as part of the commitment to Performance 
Monitoring and as part of an ongoing commitment to report to Planning Committee.    
 
The core indicators set out in the report will form part of our quarterly performance reporting 
for the Division. 
 
This report details the performance for Quarters 4 for the period between January and March 
2023. It also includes the comparative quarterly data for 2021/22.   
 
2. Summary of Performance 

The report presents the latest update of the suite of performance indicators for the 4th 
quarter period between January and March 2023 for the planning division. It includes 
headline performance indicators reported nationally to Welsh Government are Indicators 2 
and 10 as well as series of local indicators.  

At the end of the financial year 2021/2022 annual Planning performance standards set by 
the Welsh Government were exceeded for the first time.  This performance improvement 
has been maintained throughout the 22/23 with PAM/018 Percentage of all planning 
applications for Quarter 4 determined in time indicating 87% with a cumulative return of 89% 
(WG target 80%). This indicates that performance has continued to outperform the targets 
set by the Welsh Government. 

Of the local performance indicators, they indicate a continued improvement maintaining and 
developing on the progress in performance from 2021/22. For instance, major applications 
which whilst still missing the target, shows a cumulative return for 22/23 of 72% which itself 
represents a notable improvement on 21/22 (54%) and Minor applications improving from 
77% to 86%. 

Performance Indicator 14 for enforcement shows a consolidation of the improvements over 
2021/22 with a cumulative return of 69% of cases investigated within the 84-day target date 
for 22/23 as opposed to 36% for 21/22.  Q4 return identifies an 80% return in cases 
investigated within the 84-day target date, meeting the 80% target for the first time. 

3. Performance Indicators 
 
The report identifies an extensive set of core performance monitoring indicators which will 
form part of the future monitoring of the planning services performance.  These include both 

Page 41



2 
 

“National Indicators” prescribed by the Welsh Government and those identified by this 
Council.  
 
The indicators seek to clearly convey performance to the committee and will along with other 
performance measures see a continued focus on performance improvement.  The indicators 
reflect and include a range of areas of the planning service including determination of 
planning applications, enforcement, pre-applications and appeals. 
 
 
 

Performance Statistics Development Management - Planning Applications  

Indicator 1 Number of Planning Applications registered against applications 
determined 

Indicator 2 Percentage of all planning applications determined within target date 
(PAM/018 indicator collected nationally) 

Indicator 3 Major Planning Applications determined within target date 

Indicator 4 Minor Planning Applications determined within target date 

Indicator 5 Householder Applications determined within target date 

Indicator 6 Other Applications determined within target date 

Indicator 7 Statutory Pre-Applications determined within target date 

Indicator 8 Percentage of Member made decisions against Officer advice 

Indicator 9 Validation of Applications Received (5 days of receipt)  

Performance Statistics Development Management - Appeals  

Indicator 10 Percentage of planning appeals dismissed. 
(PAM/019 indicator collected nationally) 

Indicator 11 Appeals determined against officer recommendation 

Indicator 12 Applications for costs at Section 78 appeal upheld  

Performance Statistics Development Management - Enforcement  

Indicator 13 Enforcement Complaints registered 

Indicator 14 Percentage of closed enforcement cases investigated within 84 days.  

Indicator 15 Average time taken to investigate enforcement cases  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 42



3 
 

Performance Statistics Development Management 
- Planning Applications 
 

Indicator 1 Number of Planning Applications registered against applications 
determined 

 
This indicator contains all planning application types and compares the number 
determined against those registered per month. 
 
Period 
 

Registered 
Total 

Determined Total 

21/22 

Quarter 1 
Quarter 2 
Quarter 3 
Quarter 4 
Cumulative 

507 
554 
496 
464 

2021 

631 
617 
580 
459 

2287 

22/23 

Quarter 1 
Quarter 2 
Quarter 3 
Quarter 4 
Cumulative 

443 
452 
449 
443 

1787 

461 
401 
415 
454 

1731 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

370
380
390
400
410
420
430
440
450
460
470

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Registered Determined Total

Indicator 1

443
452 449

443

461

401

415

454

370

390

410

430

450

470

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Registered Determined Total

Indicator 1

Page 43



4 
 

Indicator 2 Percentage of ALL planning applications determined within target 
date (PAM/018 indicator collected nationally) - Target = 85% 

 
The indicator measures the number and percentage of applications determined within the target 
time. (The totals exclude certain application types as directed by Welsh Government.)   
 
It should be noted that our performance target for 2020/21 was for 70% to be determined within the 
target date (8 weeks). For 2021/22 and 2022/23 the target was increased to 85% to reflect the 
focus being given to improved performance. 
 
Period 
 

Total No of 
Apps 

Inside 
Target 

Outside 
Target 

Inside 
Target % 

Outside 
Target % 

21/22 

Quarter 1 525 378 147 72% 28% 
Quarter 2 510 421 89 83% 17% 
Quarter 3 494 421 73 85% 15% 
Quarter 4 371 316 55 85% 15% 
Cumulative 1900 1536 364 81% 19% 

22/23 

Quarter 1 392 358 34 91% 9% 
Quarter 2 336 291 45 87% 13% 
Quarter 3 362 331 31 91% 9% 
Quarter 4 378 327 51 87% 13% 
Cumulative 1468 1307 161 89% 11% 

 

 
Applications excluded from the Welsh Government Development Management Quarterly Survey:-  
 
Hazardous Substances, LDO – Commencement Notice Approval, Applications for Tree Works to 
TPO or in Conservation Areas, Prior Notifications, Non-Material Amendments, Demolition in a 
Conservation Area, Hedgerow Removal Notices, Electricity Notifications. 

28%

358

291

331 327

34 45 31
51

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Inside Target Outside Target

Indicator 2

Page 44



5 
 

Indicator 3 Major Planning Applications determined within target date.  
Target = 80% 

 
The indicator measures the number and percentage of major planning applications 
determined within the target time.    
 
Major Applications definition:- 
 

• a proposal to erect 10 or more dwellings (including flats) 
• where the number of dwellings is not known (outline), the application site exceeds 0.5 

hectares 
• where the application site exceeds 1 hectare 
• where proposed buildings/extensions create a floor area exceeding 1000 square metres 
• winning and working of minerals 
• waste development 
 
Period 
 

Total No of 
Apps 

Inside 
Target 

Outside 
Target 

Inside 
Target % 

Outside 
Target % 

21/22 
Quarter 1 9 6 3 67% 33% 
Quarter 2 15 6 9 40% 60% 
Quarter 3 15 9 6 60% 40% 
Quarter 4 9 5 4 56% 44% 
Cumulative 48 26 22 54% 46% 
22/23 
Quarter 1 8 6 2 75% 25% 
Quarter 2 9 5 4 56% 44% 
Quarter 3 4 4 0 100% 0% 
Quarter 4 8 6 2 75% 25% 
Cumulative 29 21 8 72% 28% 

 

 

6

5

4

6

2

4

0

2

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Inside Target Outside Target

Indicator 3

Page 45



6 
 

Indicator 4 Minor Planning Applications determined within target date 
Target = 80% 

 
The indicator measures the number and percentage of Minor applications determined 
within the target time.    
 
Minor planning applications include applications where they fall below the level of a major 
application but exclude householder and other applications captured under Indicators 5 
and 6 below.  
 
Period 
 

Total No of 
Apps 

Inside 
Target 

Outside 
Target 

Inside 
Target % 

Outside 
Target % 

21/22 
Quarter 1 201 137 64 68% 32% 
Quarter 2 216 164 52 76% 24% 
Quarter 3 217 181 36 83% 17% 
Quarter 4 151 124 27 82% 18% 
Cumulative 785 606 179 77% 23% 

22/23 

Quarter 1 151 131 20 87% 13% 
Quarter 2 146 126 20 86% 14% 
Quarter 3 163 143 20 88% 12% 
Quarter 4 176 144 32 82% 18% 
Cumulative 636 544 92 86% 14% 

 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 

131 126

143 144

20 20 20
32

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Inside Target Outside Target

Indicator 4

60% 50%

Page 46



7 
 

Indicator 5 Householder Applications determined within target date 
Target = 90% 

 
The indicator measures the number and percentage of householder applications 
determined within the target time.    
 
Householder applications include: Extensions, Conservatories. Loft conversions, Dormer 
windows, Garages, car ports, and Outbuildings 
 
Period 
 

Total No of 
Apps 

Inside 
Target 

Outside 
Target 

Inside 
Target % 

Outside 
Target % 

20/21 
Quarter 1 
Quarter 2 
Quarter 3 
Quarter 4 
Cumulative 

48 
115 
171 
98 

432 

40 
68 

127 
50 

285 

8 
47 
44 
48 

147 

83% 
59% 
74% 
51% 
66% 

17% 
41% 
26% 
49% 
34% 

22/23 
Quarter 1 122 120 2 98% 2% 
Quarter 2 105 97 8 92% 8% 
Quarter 3 110 105 5 95% 5% 
Quarter 4 97 89 8 92% 8% 
Cumulative 434 411 23 95% 5% 

 

 
 
 
  

120

97
105

89

2
8 5 8

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Inside Target Outside Target

Indicator 5

Page 47



8 
 

Indicator 6 Other Applications determined within target date 
Target = 80% 

 
Application types included: Advertisement Consent, Listed Building Consent, Certificates 
of Lawfulness, Renewals, Removal / Variation on Condition(s) 
 
Period 
 

Total No of 
Apps 

Inside 
Target 

Outside 
Target 

Inside 
Target % 

Outside 
Target % 

21/22 

Quarter 1 102 64 38 63% 37% 
Quarter 2 116 95 21 82% 18% 
Quarter 3 118 93 25 79% 21% 
Quarter 4 92 74 18 80% 20% 
Cumulative 428 326 102 76% 24% 

22/23 

Quarter 1 111 101 10 91% 9% 
Quarter 2 76 63 13 83% 17% 
Quarter 3 85 79 6 93% 7% 
Quarter 4 97 88 9 91% 9% 
Cumulative 369 331 38 90% 10|% 

 
 

 
  

101

63

79
88

10 13
6 9

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Inside Target Outside Target

Indicator 6

Page 48



9 
 

Indicator 7 Statutory Pre-Applications determined within target date 
Target = 85% 

 
Period 
 

Total No of 
Apps 

Inside 
Target 

Outside 
Target 

Inside 
Target % 

Outside 
Target % 

21/22 
Quarter 1 48 13 35 27% 73% 
Quarter 2 67 25 42 37% 63% 
Quarter 3 45 17 28 38% 62% 
Quarter 4 55 24 31 44% 56% 
Cumulative 215 79 136 37% 63% 
22/23 
Quarter 1 49 20 29 41% 59% 
Quarter 2 50 17 33 34% 66% 
Quarter 3 53 20 33 38% 62% 
Quarter 4 46 16 30 35% 65% 
Cumulative 198 73 125 37% 63% 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

20
17

20

16

29

33 33
30

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Inside Target Outside Target

Indicator 7

Page 49



10 
 

Indicator 8 Percentage of Member made decisions against Officer advice 

 
The indicator identifies those applications determined contrary to the officer’s 
recommendation at Planning Committee. 
  
Note: Based on the Decision Sent Date not the actual date of the Planning Committee. 
 
Period 
 

Total No Granted following officer 
recommendation to 

Refuse 

Refused following officer 
recommendation to 

Approve 
21/22    
Quarter 1 
 

2 2 
(E/39091 + W/36131) 

0 

Quarter 2 
 

2 2 
(W/40035 + PL/01932) 

0 

Quarter 3 
 

4 3 
(W/40030, W/37164, PL/01515) 

1 
(PL/00489) 

Quarter 4 
0 0 0 

22/23    
Quarter 1 
 

0 0 0 

Quarter 2 
 

0 0 0 

Quarter 3 
 

1 1 
(PL/4526) 

0 

Quarter 4 0 1 
(PL/04504) 

0 

 
 
  

Page 50

https://carmarthenshire-pr.force.com/en/s/planning-application/a0b5J000000S2vkQAC/w40030
https://carmarthenshire-pr.force.com/en/s/planning-application/a0b5J000000S1qOQAS/w37164
https://carmarthenshire-pr.force.com/en/s/planning-application/a0b5J000000pVi5QAE/pl01515
https://carmarthenshire-pr.force.com/en/s/planning-application/a0b5J000000SBHeQAO/pl00489
https://carmarthenshire-pr.force.com/en/s/planning-application/a0b5J000002hkFk/pl04526
https://carmarthenshire-pr.force.com/en/s/planning-application/a0b5J000002hkBYQAY/pl04504


11 
 

Indicator 9 Validation of Planning Applications (within 5 days of receipt following 
payment). Target = 100% 

 
Note: The collection of data in monitoring performance in relation to validation has been 
subject to revision - consequently this represents the first set of monitoring outcomes with 
ongoing performance and trends to be monitored. 
 
Period 
 

Total No of 
Apps 

Inside 
Target 

Outside 
Target 

Inside 
Target % 

Outside 
Target % 

22/23 
Quarter 1 432 269 163 62% 38% 
Quarter 2 429 288 141 67% 33% 
Quarter 3 423 255 168 60% 40% 
Quarter 4 418 267 151 64% 36% 
Cumulative 1702 1079 623 63% 27% 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

269
288

255
267

163
141

168
151

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Inside Target Outside Target

Indicator 9

Page 51



12 
 

Performance Statistics Development Management - Appeals 
 

Indicator 10 Percentage of planning appeals dismissed.  
(PAM/019 indicator collected nationally). Target = 70% 

 
 
Period 
 

Total No of 
Appeals 

Total 
Dismissed 

Total % 
Dismissed 

21/22 
Quarter 1 4 4 100% 
Quarter 2 7 4 57% 

Quarter 3 1 1 100% 

Quarter 4 5 4 80% 

Cumulative 17 13 76% 

22/23 
Quarter 1 6 3 50% 
Quarter 2 9 7 78% 

Quarter 3 14 12 86% 

Quarter 4 10 4 40% 
Cumulative 39 26 67% 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 52



13 
 

Indicator 11 Appeals determined against officer recommendation 

 
Identifies the outcome of appeals lodged where they are because of a decision taken 
contrary to an officer recommendation. 
 
Period 
 

Total No of 
Appeals 

Granted following officer 
recommendation to 

Refuse 

Refused following officer 
recommendation to 
Approve 

21/22    
Quarter 1 0 - - 
Quarter 2 0 - - 
Quarter 3 0 - - 
Quarter 4 0 - - 

22/23    
Quarter 1 0 - - 
Quarter 2 0 - - 
Quarter 3 0 - - 
Quarter 4 0 - - 

 
 
 
 
 

Indicator 12 Applications for costs at Section 78 appeal upheld  

 
Award of costs against the Local Planning Authority Quarter 1 and 2 - 0 
 
Note:  
Members are reminded in reaching a decision of the requirements under the ‘Code of 
Conduct for Councillors and Officers in Planning Matters’ and to be aware of the 
implications including financial of that decision. 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 53



14 
 

Performance Statistics Development Management 
- Enforcement 
 
 

Indicator 13 Enforcement Complaints registered 

 
Identifies the quarterly number of enforcement complaints registered.  
 
Period 
 

Registered 
Total 

21/22 

 
Quarter 1 
Quarter 2 
Quarter 3 
Quarter 4 
Cumulative 
 

 
143 
134 
88 

121 
486 

22/23  

 
Quarter 1 
Quarter 2 
Quarter 3 
Quarter 4 
Cumulative 
 

 
163 
189 
109 
118 
579 

 
 
 
 
 
  

163

189

109
118

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Indicator 13

Page 54



15 
 

Indicator 14 Percentage of closed enforcement cases investigated within 84 days. 
Target = 80% 

 
Note: 'Investigated' means that the authority has considered the alleged breach of 
planning control and advised the complainant of the outcome of their investigation.   
 
Period 
 

Total No of 
Cases 

Inside 
Target 

Outside 
Target 

Inside 
Target % 

Outside 
Target % 

21/22 
Quarter 1 90 61 29 68% 32% 
Quarter 2 189 80 109 42% 58% 
Quarter 3 189 47 142 25% 75% 
Quarter 4 348 105 243 30% 70% 
Cumulative 816 293 523 36% 64% 
22/23 
Quarter 1 166 90 76 54% 46% 
Quarter 2 156 118 38 76% 24% 
Quarter 3 114 80 34 70% 30% 
Quarter 4 105 84 21 80% 20% 
Cumulative 541 372 169 69% 31% 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

90

118

80
84

76

38
34

21

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Inside Target Outside Target

Indicator 14

Page 55



16 
 

 

Indicator 15 Average time taken to investigate enforcement cases (in days).   
Target = 100 days 

 
 
Period 
 

Average no 
of days 

21/22 
 
Quarter 1 
Quarter 2 
Quarter 3 
Quarter 4 
 
 

 
135 
412 
673 
414 

 

22/23 

 
Quarter 1 
Quarter 2 
Quarter 3 
Quarter 4 
 

 
283 
124 
198 
93 

 
 
 
 
 
 

283

124

198

93

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Indicator 15

Page 56


	Agenda
	3 DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS
	PL/03849
	PL/04739
	PL/05366

	4 TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 27TH APRIL, 2023
	5 PLANNING SERVICE PERFORMANCE - QUARTER 4
	PCCI Report - Q4 - January to March 23


